1989

Kelly Howard v. Robert E. Buhler : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

This appeal is brought pursuant to the provisions of Article VIII, Sections 3 and 5 of the Utah Constitution and pursuant to Rules 3 and 4 of the Rules of the Utah Court of Appeals. Plaintiff appeals from the Third Judicial District Court's entry of Judgment in favor of Respondent.

DETERMINATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES,
ORDINANCES, AND RULES.

None

ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW*

Did the trial court err when it entered judgment that plaintiff's claims for bodily injury were barred by accord and satisfaction?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Nature of Case

On November 9, 1985 Kelly Howard was injured in a two car automobile collision in which Robert E. Buhler was the driver of the other vehicle. After various contacts and communications between Howard and the insurance adjustor for Buhler's insurance carrier Howard brought suit for personal injuries and other claims. Buhler asserted, among other defenses, the affirmative defense of accord and satisfaction (R10).

B. Course of Proceedings and Disposition Below

The case was tried to the Court without a jury on June 7 and 8, 1988. At the conclusion of the trial the Court requested that Howard respond to Buhler's Trial Memorandum Respecting Accord and Satisfaction Defense dated June 7, 1988 (R245-25). Howard filed his response on June 15, 1988 (R180-195). On June 17, 1988 Buhler filed his Defendant's Reply to Plaintiff's Trial Memorandum Respecting Accord and Satisfaction (R196-207). On September 21, 1988 the Honorable James S. Sawaya filed a Memorandum Decision in favor of Buhler (R242,243). On

*Another issue may be presented pursuant to Rule 2 R.Ut. App. Ct.

October 13, 1988 the judgment appealed from was entered (R288-290). On November 4, 1988 Howard filed his Notice of Appeal (R303).

C. Statement of Facts

In the first contact that Howard had with Ms. Kirchoff on November 12, 1985, the adjustor for Buhler's insurance carrier, Howard gave her a statement of the accident Howard told her then that he had "spoke with an attorney" (T104), which she recorded (T43,95,104). Thereafter on January 24, 1986 Kirchoff sent Howard a release form to settle the claim for \$2,844 (T43,96). She advised Howard that "When I received that back by return mail, I would forward a check" (T97). The release was never signed and returned (T98,99). On May 29, 1986 Howard consulted with his present counsel and then learned he could obtain legal service on a contingent fee basis without charge on the sum the insurance carrier was willing to pay if their offer was in writing (Ex.43). On July 8, 1986, after Howard decided to go into a lighter line of work as recommended by his doctor and take a computer course costing \$3,700 to qualify him for computer work, Kirchoff made a settlement offer of \$8,000 (T99, Ex.13). In doing so she "discussed the release that I would need, the computer school contract for \$3,700. I would forward a release. He would return it by mail, sign the release, have it notarized. Upon receipt of the release in our office, I would forward him a check and conclude the matter." (T102) On August 6, 1986 Kirchoff sent Howard a letter requesting that he send the release

(T102, Ex.12). On August 7, 1986 he called his attorney and advised that written proof of an \$8,000 insurance company was being sent to him (Ex.44). A contingent fee, contract excluding \$8,000 was signed by Howard August 18, 1986 (Ex.44). It was never signed (Ex.13). Buhler was served with summons in this suit on October 9, 1986 (T110). Kirchoff never told him before that date that this case had been settled (T110).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

The trial court erred in determining that Howard accepted the offer of \$8,000 rather than only indicating that at that time he was "ready to settle" since the quoted words were the only facts to which Buhler's adjustor testified to regarding his comments and especially in view of his not signing and returning two release forms that the adjustor said he'd have to sign before she paid him.

The preponderance of the evidence is there was no accord. In any event this Court should require the higher degree of proof of clear and convincing evidence to find an accord in settling insurance claims.

ARGUMENT

A. THE EVIDENCE WAS INSUFFICIENT TO SUPPORT A FINDING OF ORAL ACCEPTANCE OF AN \$8,000 OFFER AND THE OFFER WAS CONDITIONAL UPON SIGNING OF A WRITTEN RELEASE WHICH WAS NEVER SIGNED.

In Paragraph No. 2 of a mixture of facts and conclusions which were not separated (R289) the Court states that "plaintiff accepted the settlement figure of \$8,000 on July 8, 1986." There is no evidence to support any finding of fact to justify such a conclusion of law. In only one part of the record does Buhler's witness on this point testify as to what Howard said on that date. Her quote as to his statement was "I am ready." (T181) At that point in time he had consulted with counsel and he was "ready", ready to either settle the case or to go to court if the settlement offered was not what the claim was worth. He did not have the benefit of his counsel's evaluation of an \$8,000 offer then and he obviously intended to obtain it before making his decision (Ex.43,44).

Although Buhler had the burden of proof on this issue he did not present any proof as to what was actually said in the form of a telephone recording, even though the adjustor involved previously recorded their initial call concerning the facts of the case.

The adjustor had made it clear to Howard that he had to sign the release form she sent him before he could be paid. He was justified in relying on her representation in that regard and particularly since there was no effort to hold him to a prior offer of \$2,844 which the adjustor claimed was also accepted by him (T105). The evidence was in conflict as to whether Howard told Kirchoff that he was going to consult an attorney before he settled the case (T49 and T105). Jay Wood corroborated Howard's

testimony on this point (T121,122).

Much was made at trial of Exhibit 14 a statement Jay Wood sent to Kirchoff at Howard's request on August 8, 1986 which reads as follows:

"Enclosed is the contract from the school which I am attending (Mountainwest College).

Please send me my release form for \$8,000.00 on which we agreed."

There is no doubt from the evidence that Kirchoff needed a copy of the computer school contract before she would be able to settle and that Howard needed a written offer of settlement before his attorney would make an exclusion from his contingent fee contract if the offer were inadequate. This need for an exchange is what that note was all about.

The most telling proof that there was no acceptance by Howard of the \$8,000 telephone offer on July 8, 1986 was Kirchoff's letter of August 6, 1986 in which she states, *inter alia*, "If you are still interested in settling your claim, please provide American Concept with a copy of your education contract so that we may conclude this matter" (Ex.12) (underscoring added).

The preponderance of the evidence is against an accord and satisfaction for the following reasons:

1. No release was signed in this case although Kirchoff told Howard that would be required before he could be paid. (Ex.13, T 102)

2. Howard and Kirchoff had previously discussed settlement at a different figure and Kirchoff claimed they had reached

accord but the formal release was not signed and Kirchoff did not seek to enforce it (thus leading Howard to believe that there would not be an enforceable settlement until the formal release had been signed). (T96,97)

3. Plaintiff consulted with counsel on May 29, 1986 and knew he could pursue any claim that was not deemed fair by his attorney without paying a fee on the sum offered in writing. (Ex.43)

4. No recording was made of the remarks of the claimant although the adjustor had previously made a recording of the claimants oral statements and claimant knew that. (T104 and absence of proof of recording "settlement discussion.)

5. Kirchoff did not testify that plaintiff actually agreed to settle his claims for \$8,000.00 (can't cite to the negative).

6. Kirchoff did not follow up the phone conference of July 8, 1986 in which she claims plaintiff agreed to settle for \$8,000.00 with any confirming letter or other documentation sent at that time. (Id.)

7. On August 6, 1986 Kirchoff wrote plaintiff in pertinent part as follows: "If you are still interested in settling your claim, please provide American Concept with a copy of your education contract so we may conclude this matter." (underscoring added) (Ex.12)

8. Kirchoff had not followed up on the above letter by the time Buhler was served with process in this suit which occurred on the 9th day of October, 1986 and she never told me before then

that she'd settled the case.

In the court below Buhler's counsel urged the Court to find an accord on the facts of this case by following the four following precedents:

(1) Sugarhouse Finance Co. v. Anderson, 610 P2d 1369 (Utah 1980).

(2) Jaramillo v. Farmers Insurance Group, 669 P2d 1231 (Utah 1983).

(3) Allen v. Bissinger & Co., 219 P539 (Utah 1923).

(4) Lawrence Construction Co. v. Holmquist, 642 P2d 382.

As for (1), deals almost entirely with the question of "consideration," that being the fourth element it listed as being essential to an Accord and Satisfaction (element 3 being "assent or a meeting of minds," which is the critical element on the instant case--was stated as being present there and thus not discussed.

As for (2), the facts were not in dispute. The facts there were stipulated to. In a three to two decision the majority found that there was a conflict between the stipulation of facts and the release in evidence and held that the former was controlling and that a prior precedent of that Court would not alter the legal effect of the parties agreement to settle a case contrary to that precedent (the Ivie case which held that Utah's no fault law does not confer on a no-fault insurer the right of subrogation to funds received by its insured in a subsequent

action against the tortfeasor.

As for (3), the accord was based on correspondence and the Court said "there is no substantial conflict in the evidence, the most important part of which consists of written communications between the parties." This is in sharp contrast with the case at bar where the critical communications are oral rather than in writing and the testimony is diametrically opposed as to the substance of the phone conversations in question.

As for (4), the issue was whether the settlement was subject to certain conditions. There the party held to an oral accord actually signed the Stipulation (but three days after the stated deadline) and the Court noted (P.383) that "neither the letter nor the Stipulation specifically states that the settlement was contingent on those conditions." Although an oral accord was there enforced there was no dispute as to what was said in the prior oral agreement. In the instant case there is no proof at all as to what Howard said (disregarding his own testimony at trial said the evidence must be reviewed in the light most favorable to the prevailing party) only the adjustor's conclusion that he had accepted.

None of the foregoing cases hold or even imply that one party stating he is "ready to settle" is equivalent to saying "I accept your offer of \$8,000" or words to that effect. Thus, this case is one of initial impression and one likely to lower the case adjustors henceforth take to be sure a settlement is a settlement.

Buhler in his post-trial brief went outside the record in quoting from a deposition he took of Howard. This is quoted here to contrast the type of factual statement which would constitute an oral acceptance with the total absence of such evidence in this record. There Buhler's counsel asked this hypothetical question:

"If you called her (Kirchoff) up and said 'I want to settle this case for \$8,000' and you discussed your school contract and she said 'okay, send me the school contract and I'll send you a release and we can conclude your claim' as you never said anything more to her, do you think it's reasonable for her to believe that you settled your claim?" (R199,200) Over objection Howard answered affirmatively. (R200)

B. CLEAR AND CONVINCING EVIDENCE SHOULD BE REQUIRED DEGREE OF PROOF IN INSURANCE CLAIMS TO PROVE AN ORAL ACCORD.

Sound policy considerations impel caution in accepting an insurance adjustor's uncorroborated claim that the claimant settled his or her claim by an oral statement alone. Otherwise many claimants may never have "their day in court." A recent illustration of this Court applying such caution even to a stipulation recorded in a deposition to which a party's counsel agreed is the case of Brown v. Brown, 744 P2d 333 (Utah App. 1987). Admittedly there is no stipulation involved in this case. Even so the principle of requiring evidence to be more than a preponderance should be required in those classes of cases where, as here, there could be an advantage unfairly taken without detection by the more experienced person such as an insurance adjustor.

No Utah case has ever decided whether the usual civil rule of preponderance applies in a case of an oral contract of settlement of an insurance claim. The imposition by this Court of the standard of clear and convincing evidence would have a salutary effect of requiring insurance companies to corroborate an oral acceptance by voice recordings, confirmation by other witnesses to the statements made, contemporaneous documentation or whatever satisfies the higher degree of proof.

Our Supreme Court in the case of Holder v. Holder, 340 P.2d 761 (Utah 1959) increased the required proof from clear and convincing to proof beyond a reasonable doubt in an annulment suit involving a question of paternity for comparable reasons of public policy to those Howard respectfully urges upon this Court to establish where no prior degree has yet been established. to settle this case for \$8,000' and you discussed your school contract and she said 'okay, send me the school contract and I'll send you a release and we can conclude your claim' as you never said anything more to her, do you think its reasonable for her to believe that you settled your claim?" (R199, 200)

In the reply memorandum Buhler's counsel states "When judged by an objective standard all conduct of Plaintiff indicated that he had settled this case with Ms. Kirchoff." Howard respectfully points out that his following conduct does not indicate he had settled this case with Ms. Kirchoff: (1) he consulted with an attorney in November 1985 whose name he could not recall to give Ms. Kirchoff at that time (T104), (2) He obtained a proposed

written contingent fee contract from his present attorney on May 29, 1986 (Ex. 43), (3) On August 15, 1986 he signed a written contingent fee contract with his present counsel (Ex.44), (4) He did not sign, notarize or return to the insurance adjustor the written release she said he's have to sign before she could pay him (R227), (5) He caused process to be served upon Buhler on October 8, 1986. (R5)

In the same memorandum Buhler's counsel contends it is clear "even beyond a reasonable doubt that Plaintiff entered into a binding accord and satisfaction in this case." Accordingly, Buhler ought not to object to the application in this case of a lesser standard of "clear and convincing" in deciding whether an accord was proved.

CONCLUSION

The evidence is insufficient to find an accord and, alternatively, the preponderance of the evidence is there was no accord. Alternatively to all of the above the Court should require as a matter of public policy that oral accords in insurance case should require proof that is clear and convincing rather than a mere preponderance.

Howard respectfully requests this court to set aside the trial court's entry of judgment based on accord and satisfaction and remand the case to trial court for findings of fact,

conclusions of law and judgment as to issues of liability and damages.