1989

Kelly Howard v. Robert E. Buhler : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. The instant appeal is simply unfounded since all credible evidence set forth above supports the trial court's finding. In view of the deference to be accorded the trial court in reviewing the evidence and assessing the credibility of the witnesses, Plaintiff has failed to set forth even a single legally cognizable error of the lower court. In an attempt to avoid the judgment below, Plaintiff now claims that he had some unexpressed ulterior motives in securing a settlement agreement with Defendant's insurance carrier. However, these unexpressed and improper motives are insufficient to avoid a binding accord and satisfaction. Under the objective test applied under Utah law, a reasonable person would have believed that Plaintiff had settled his claim.

2. The meritless questions raised in the instant appeal do not involve novel questions of first impression which would warrant the establishment of a new burden of proof to prove accord and satisfaction. The degree of proof required to establish an accord and satisfaction must be the same as that required to establish the

existence of any contract; i.e., a preponderance of the evidence. Where, as here, there is sufficient credible evidence to support such a finding, the trial court must be upheld. Further, even if a higher standard of proof were required, such a standard would be easily satisfied by the facts in the instant case.

3. Defendant is entitled to an award of costs and attorney's fees incurred in responding to this frivolous appeal. Plaintiff has not identified any alleged error on the part of the trial court, but simply wants this Court to retry the facts of the case. A reasonable inquiry into applicable law and the record below demonstrates the patent impropriety of the instant appeal.

ARGUMENT I

THIS APPEAL HAS NOT BEEN FILED IN GOOD FAITH SINCE ALL CREDIBLE EVIDENCE SUPPORTS THE TRIAL COURT'S FINDING OF ACCORD AND SATISFACTION

Plaintiff improvidently argues that there is insufficient evidence to support the trial court's finding of accord and satisfaction. This contention is absolutely contrary to the evidence established below. From a review of nothing more than the Statement of Facts above, the propriety of the trial court's judgment should be readily apparent. However, after setting forth the appropriate standard of review, Defendant will illustrate how the trial court's judgment is in accord with controlling Utah law as applied to the evidence in this case.

a. Standard of Review of Lower Court's Decision

Plaintiff is asking this Court to retry the facts of this case rather than review the legal sufficiency of the trial court's findings. The issue on appeal is not whether there was a binding accord and satisfaction, but whether there was sufficient evidence for the trial judge to so find.

The trial court's finding of accord and satisfaction must be upheld since sufficient credible evidence exists to sustain such a finding. In Christensen v. Abbott, 595 P.2d 900 (Utah 1979), the Court upheld the trial court's finding of accord and satisfaction where there was sufficient credible evidence to support that determination. Id. at 902. The Court declared:

After a careful review of the record, we cannot say, in deference to the trial court's prerogative to adjudge the credibility of witnesses, that the court's findings are not supported by credible evidence as to the parties' intentions regarding the cancellation of the note.

Id.

Further, this Court is to review the evidence below in the light most favorable to the trial court's findings. Where there is sufficient credible evidence to support that finding, this Court must sustain them. Search v. Union Pacific Railroad Co., 649 P.2d 48 (Utah 1982). Search sets forth the deference to be accorded the trial judge's findings of fact in a non-jury trial:

As we have frequently stated, in a non-jury trial it is the trial judge's prerogative to find facts - including judging the credibility of witnesses, weighing the reliability of other evidence, and drawing fairly derived and reasonable inferences therefrom. On Appeal this Court reviews the evidence in a light most favorable to the trial court findings. Where there is competent evidence to support the findings this Court must sustain them.

Id. at 50 (citations omitted).

It is clear from the foregoing Statement of Facts that the overwhelming weight of the evidence supports the trial court's findings and judgment. Therefore, Plaintiff has not met his burden of overcoming the presumption of validity afforded the lower court's decision. "It is incumbent upon the appellant to marshall all of the evidence in support of the trial court's findings and to then demonstrate that even when viewed in the light most favorable to the factual determinations made by the court, that the evidence is insufficient to support its findings." Harline v. Campbell, 728 P.2d 980, 982 (Utah 1986) (footnote omitted).

Under the standard of review employed by this Court, Plaintiff has failed to set forth even sufficient factual contentions to justify this appeal. Plaintiff has further failed to identify any cognizable error upon which this appeal may be based, since there is abundant evidence to support the trial court's finding and no suggestion that the trial court abused its discretion.

**b. The Trial Court's Judgment Comports
With Utah Law Respecting Accord and Satisfaction**

An accord and satisfaction arises when the parties to an agreement or cause of action agree that a different performance, to be made in substitution of the performance originally claimed by the Plaintiff, will discharge the obligations stated under the original agreement or cause of action. Sugarhouse Finance Co. v. Anderson, 610 P.2d 1369, 1372 (Utah 1980). As the Court set out in Sugarhouse Finance there are four necessary elements to an accord and satisfaction:

1. A proper subject matter;
2. Competent parties;
3. An assent or meeting of the minds of the parties; and
4. A consideration given for the accord.

Id.

It is well recognized in Utah that the agreement to settle a disputed or uncertain cause of action constitutes valid consideration for the accord and satisfaction. "Where the underlying claim is disputed or uncertain ('unliquidated'), the obligor's assent to the definite statement of performance in the accord amounts to sufficient consideration, as it constitutes a surrender of the right to dispute the initial obligation." Id. (footnote omitted).

The settlement of Plaintiff's bodily injury claim was a proper subject matter for a contract of accord and satisfaction. It is common for persons injured in automobile accidents to make monetary settlements with claims adjusters negotiating on behalf of their insureds. In the instant case, Plaintiff and Ms. Kirchoff negotiated and settled Plaintiff's claim as a matter of course.

Plaintiff and Ms. Kirchoff are both competent parties and were so at the time of entering the settlement contract.

Both parties agreed to the essential terms of the contract, i.e., that Plaintiff would release all claims in exchange for \$8,000.00, provided he substantiate this increased amount by sending his educational contract. Plaintiff signed a letter stating those terms and indicating that he "agreed" to the terms. Ms. Kirchoff testified that she understood that a settlement had likewise been reached with Plaintiff.

The standard used to determine whether a party to an accord and satisfaction contract mutually assented to its terms is judged by an objective standard of what a "reasonable" person would have understood from the party's language or acts. The Utah case law on this subject is clear. In Jaramillo v. Farmer's Insurance Group, 669 P.2d 1231 (Utah 1983), the Court was called upon to consider the effect of a settlement agreement reached in compromise of a personal injury action against State Farm Insurance Company's

insured. In finding the settlement agreement to be binding upon the Plaintiff, the Court declared:

In light of the stipulation of the parties, it is clear that Plaintiff outwardly accepted State Farm's terms of settlement. Any contrary intentions he may have had were left unexpressed and were not otherwise disclosed. It is well established in the law that unexpressed intentions do not effect the validity of a contract.

Id. at 1233.

In reaching the conclusions set forth above, the Court relied upon the earlier decision, Allen v. Bissinger & Co., 62 Utah 226, 219 P. 539 (1923), for the following proposition:

The apparent mutual assent of the parties, essential to the formation of a contract, must be gathered by the language employed by them, and the law imputes to a person an intention corresponding to the reasonable meaning of his words and acts. It judges of his intentions by his outward expressions and excludes all questions in regard to his unexpressed intention. If his words or acts judged by a reasonable standard manifest an intention to agree to the matter in question, that agreement is established and it is immaterial what may be the real but unexpressed state of his mind upon the subject.

Jaramillo, 669 P.2d at 1233.

When judged under a reasonable standard, the outward expressions of Plaintiff as set forth in detail above, rather than any unspoken intentions he now claims to have had, establishes a binding accord and satisfaction. During the telephone conversation

on July 8, 1986, Plaintiff and Ms. Kirchoff agreed to settle Plaintiff's bodily injury claim for \$8,000.00. As execution of the settlement agreement, Plaintiff sent his education contract as well as a signed letter to Ms. Kirchoff which stated in part, "please send me my release form for \$8,000.00 on which we agreed." Therefore, based upon the objective standard, reasonable minds would have understood that the parties had settled this dispute.

Plaintiff cites no authority in support of his proposition that the parties had not entered an accord and satisfaction. Instead, Plaintiff attempts to distinguish the authorities cited by Defendant. Plaintiff's attempts to distinguish Sugar House Finance Co., 610 P.2d 1369 (Utah 1980) are ineffectual since Defendant cited the Sugar House Finance case to set forth the four necessary elements of an accord and satisfaction. Plaintiff likewise attempts to distinguish Jaramillo v. Farmers Insurance Group, 669 P.2d 1231 (Utah 1983), and Allen v. Bissinger & Co., 219 P. 539 (1923). However, those cases are cited by Defendant to establish the proper standard under contract law for evaluating whether the parties expressed the requisite mutual assent or "meeting of the minds." In that regard, Plaintiff admits that an objective standard is to be used in analyzing the issue of mutual assent and quotes the Allen decision as follows: "There is no substantial conflict in the evidence, the most important part of

which consists of written communications between the parties." Plaintiff relies on this one sentence to claim that here all critical communications were oral rather than in writing. However, a review of the above facts indicates that by Plaintiff's own letter received August 8, 1986, he had memorialized the substance of the settlement agreement reached with Ms. Kirchoff on July 8, 1986.

Therefore, the Allen case (and as more recently cited with approval in the Jaramillo case) provides clear precedent for finding a binding contract of accord and satisfaction here.

i.) An Executed Release of all Claims is not Necessary to a Finding of Accord and Satisfaction.

An accord and satisfaction need not be in writing. Golden Key Realty, Inc. v. Mantas, 699 P.2d 730, 732 (Utah 1985); Christensen v. Abbott, 595 P.2d 900, 902 (Utah 1979). An appellate court will sustain the trial court's finding of accord and satisfaction if there is sufficient credible evidence respecting accord and satisfaction. Christensen 595 at 902. See also, Cheney v. Rucker, 381 P.2d 86 (Utah 1963).

In Lawrence Construction Co. v. Holmquist, 642 P.2d 382 (Utah 1982) a general contractor filed suit to foreclose a mechanic's lien on a ski lodge construction project and the defendant subcontractor sought to enforce a previous settlement agreement

entered into with the general contractor respecting settlement of certain claims arising out of the construction project. The trial court found that a valid accord and satisfaction had been entered between the general and subcontractors. The general contractor appealed and the trial court's decision was upheld by the Utah Supreme Court.

In upholding the earlier decision, the Court declared:

The stipulation and letter sent to National Mechanical by their terms indicate they were merely to memorialize a previous oral agreement made between the parties. That the parties contemplated subsequent execution of a written instrument as evidence of their agreement did not prevent the oral agreement from binding the parties. ... If a written agreement is intended to memorialize an oral contract, a subsequent failure to execute the written document does not nullify the oral contract. ...

In our view the prior agreement was an executory accord and as such constitutes a valid enforceable contract. 'An accord is an agreement between parties, one to give up or perform, the other to receive or accept, such agreed payment or performance in satisfaction of a claim.' Browning v. Equitable Life Assurance Society, 94 Utah 532, 72 P.2d 1060 (1937). In Alaska Creamery Products, Inc. v. Wells, Alaska 373 P.2d 505, 511 (1962), the court defined an executory accord as 'an agreement that an existing claim shall be discharged in the future by the rendition of a substituted performance.' See also, 6 Corbin, Contracts, §1269 at 75-76 (1962).

Id. at 384 (citations omitted).

Therefore, as in the Lawrence decision, the receipt of the signed Release of All Claims for \$8,000 was not necessary prior to finding a binding oral accord and satisfaction entered into by Plaintiff and Ms. Kirchoff on July 8, 1986. As in Lawrence, the record here supports the conclusion that an enforceable accord and satisfaction was reached by the parties. Further, the accord and satisfaction was in no way conditioned upon receipt of the executed settlement agreement and therefore, Plaintiff's continued claims regarding the release are both misplaced and irrelevant.

ARGUMENT II

**THIS APPEAL DOES NOT PRESENT ANY NOVEL QUESTIONS
OF FIRST IMPRESSION WHICH WOULD WARRANT THIS
COURT ESTABLISHING A NEW EVIDENTIARY STANDARD
TO PROVE ACCORD AND SATISFACTION**

Despite Plaintiff's rather desperate claims to the contrary, this is not an unusual case of first impression. Lawrence Construction, 642 P.2d 382 (Utah 1982), clearly establishes the propriety and enforceability of an oral accord and satisfaction. Id. at 384. Further, when viewed in the light most favorable to the factual determinations made by the lower court, all evidence in this case supports that court's findings. Therefore, this Court must uphold the trial court's judgment. Harline v. Campbell, 728 P.2d 980, 982 (Utah 1986).

This case certainly does not justify the announcement of a new legal standard requiring proof by clear and convincing evidence to establish an accord and satisfaction. Rather, this Court is to uphold the trial court's finding where there is sufficient credible evidence to support that determination. Christensen v. Abbott, 595 P.2d at 902. After a review of the above facts, and in deference to the trial court's prerogative to adjudge the credibility of the witnesses, it is contrary to reason for Plaintiff to claim that the court's findings are not supported by credible evidence.

Additionally, Plaintiff argues that policy considerations require a heightened degree of proof to establish an accord and satisfaction. However, the true public policy consideration at issue here involves Plaintiff's unorthodox fee agreement with counsel. That agreement required Plaintiff to actively mislead Defendant's insurance carrier into believing that it was negotiating a good faith settlement of Plaintiff's personal injury action. That level of deception in negotiating a settlement agreement as well as the subsequent breach of that agreement should be strongly discouraged. "The law favors the resolution of controversies and uncertainties through compromise and settlement rather than through litigation" 15 Am.Jur. 2d Compromise and Settlement §5 (1976). Therefore, if any consideration of public policy is implicated here, it requires affirmance of the

lower court's judgment since it encourages sincere and honest negotiated settlements.

Plaintiff cites Brown v. Brown, 744 P.2d 333 (Utah Ct. App. 1987), in support of his claim for a more demanding burden of proof. However, Brown has no application to a controversy involving accord and satisfaction. Brown involves a situation where the Plaintiff remains silent during a purported settlement conference with the defendant and counsel for both parties. The issue in Brown essentially involved whether counsel could enter a binding agreement for the plaintiff with plaintiff manifesting no assent to the terms thereof. Here, however, Plaintiff initiated all relevant contact with Ms. Kirchoff, agreed by telephone on July 8, 1986, to settle his claims and memorialized his intention to settle through the letter received by Ms. Kirchoff on August 8, 1986. Thus, Plaintiff's reliance upon the Brown decision is unfounded.

Further, Plaintiff grossly mischaracterizes Holder v. Holder, 9 Utah 2d 163, 340 P.2d 761 (1959). That case did not, as Plaintiff claims, increase "the required proof from clear and convincing to proof beyond a reasonable doubt in an annulment suit." Holder simply coalesces the previously established majority position "that the presumption of legitimacy will prevail unless the contrary is proved beyond a reasonable doubt." Id. at 763.

(footnote omitted). This case, therefore, in no way supports Plaintiff's claim for an increased burden of proof here.

Thus, it is readily apparent that this case does not require a change of the legal evidentiary standards necessary to establish a binding contract or, more particularly, an accord and satisfaction. Moreover, even if a higher evidentiary standard was required, it is certain that, when viewed in the most favorable light, all evidence adduced below supports the lower court's findings and judgment.

ARGUMENT III

DEFENDANT IS ENTITLED TO AN AWARD OF HIS REASONABLE COSTS AND ATTORNEY'S FEES INCURRED IN RESPONDING TO THE INSTANT APPEAL